
World’s Columbian Exposition and Lanyon Opera House 

The celebrated world’s fair in Jackson Park drew the attention of Englewood residents on 
Chicago Day, 9 October 1893, the 22nd anniversary of the 1871 Great Chicago Fire. But before 
the world’s fair, there was the Lanyon Opera House. Little is known of its origin, but most 
certainly it was built and owned by the Lanyons at the outset. Then it was sold and operated 
under the name Englewood Opera House, although “Lanyon” remained inscribed in stone above 
the main entrance. 

An image of the building is shown on page 2 in halftone red color, indicating a four-story 
structure with a fifth partial floor with dormers and a cupola above the front façade. The building 
appears to be of timber frame construction. Immediately below the cupola is a sign stating, 
“Lanyon’s Opera House,” the original name of the building. Descriptive text in the upper left-
hand corner describes the distance from downtown Chicago and railroad transportation routes to 
Englewood. Descriptive text in the upper right-hand corner briefly describes Englewood and 
opera house information. The opera house was located on Englewood Avenue, later named Sixty-
Second Place, between Wentworth and Princeton Avenues. 

A pencil sketch on the letterhead indicates that someone, perhaps D. N. Lanyon, Lessee and 
Manager, was outlining the opera house proscenium.  

The opera house is referred to as the well-known Lanyon Opera House on page 44 and as the old 
Lanyon Opera House on page 157 of Gerald Sullivan’s The Story of Englewood published by the 
Englewood Business Men’s Association in 1924. Numerous references to Lanyons are mentioned 
on page 44 which is displayed on page 4. 

On page 157 of the Englewood story book in discussing the history of the Y. M. C. A. is stated: 
“A lecture course of six lectures was given each year in the old Lanyon Opera House on 
Englewood Avenue and later in the Marlowe Theatre.” 

The aerial photograph on page 3, is from the Chicago Public Library, Special Collections, 
located on the tenth floor of the Harold Washington Library. No description was provided, but it 
is believed to be looking southeast from an elevated viewpoint, such as, the 61st Street Station, 
Englewood branch of elevated rapid transit railroad, presently the CTA Green Line, which 
opened about 1906 per Sullivan, page 103. The large building is believed to be the opera house 
since its outlines match the image on the letterhead. It was placed on Englewood Avenue in the 
Sullivan book, page 157. The shadowed north face of the building would place it on the south 
side of Englewood Avenue, later known as Sixty-Second Place, probably west of and close to 
Wentworth Avenue. Presently, all this is the Dan Ryan Expressway. 

The opera house was built sometime after 1874 when the Lanyons first arrived in Englewood. 
The opera house was there after 1906 when 61st Street elevated railroad stop was opened. 

Having worked at the world’s fair, Dick was interested in being part of Chicago Day. Page 5 
displays his workman’s pass and page 6 is a map of the fair and Midway Plaisance. The notes 
and photographs on pages 7 through 13 describe the Chicago Day activities. 
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